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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COQR /%\
o 2%
q&

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLIN®j
EASTERN DIVISION %S N, 1o}
4" <D

‘%% aneo (v
4. O,
WINDY CITY INNOVATIONS, LLC ) 9 05
a Delaware company, ) ooo"

) P
Plaintiff, ) Civil Action No. 04-4240
) Judge Samuel Der-Yeghiayan
v. )
)
AMERICA ONLINE, INC.,, )
A Delaware corporation ) Jury Trial Demanded
Defendant. )

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, Windy City Innovations, LLC (“Windy City”), for its complaint against
Defendant, America Online, Inc. ( “AOL”) allege as follows:

THE PARTIES

1. Windy City is a company organized and existing under the laws of the State of
Delaware, with its principal place of business at 195 North Harbor Drive, Suite 5403, Chicago,
lllinois, 60601.

2. On information and belief, AOL is a corporation organized and existing under the
laws of the State of Delaware, with its principal place of business at 22000 AOL Way, Dulles,
Virginia, 20166-9323.

3. On information and belief, AOL has a diviston, AOL Interactive Marketing, with

a regular and established place of business at 875 N. Michigan Ave., Chicago, lllinois 60611.
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JURISDICTION

4. This action arises under the Patent Laws of the United States (35 U.S.C. §§ 1 ez
seq.) and seeks damages and injunctive relief as provided in 35 U.S.C. §§ 281 and 283-285.

5. The Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. §§
1338(a).

6. On information and belief, this Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant
under Illinois Statute § 2-209 (735 ILCS 5/2-209) and under the Due Process Clause of the
United States Constitution because (i) Defendant regularly conducts business in this judicial
district and (ii) Defendant has committed one or more acts of infringement in this judicial
district.

7. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1400 (a) and (b) as, on
information and belief, Defendant resides in this judicial district and/or has committed acts of

infringement within this judicial district,

COUNT I — INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 5,956,491

8. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 through 7 as if fully set forth herein.

9. On September 21, 1999, the United States Patent and Trademark Office duly and
legally issued U.S. Patent No. 5,956,491 (“the ‘491 patent”) titled “Group Communications
Multiplexing System.” A copy of the ‘491 patent is attached as Exhibit A. By assignment,
Windy City has acquired and continues to maintain all rights, title, and interest in and to the ‘491
patent, including the right to sue and collect damages for past infringement.

10.  Since September 21, 1999, AOL has made, used, sold, offered to sell, imported
into the United States, and/or supplied in or from (or caused to be supplied in or from) the United

States, and/or makes, uses, sells, offers to sell, imports into the United States, and/or supplies in
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or from (or causes to be supplied in or from) the United States, without a license under the ‘491
patent, products, processes, services, components, client software, server software and/or server
hardware associated with:

(a) the AOL Instant Messenger (AIM) product/service including, without limitation, AIM
versions 3.0 - 5.9 and other AIM versions for PC, Mac, Unix, Linux, Pocket PC, Palm and other
client devices/operating systems, including hand-held and mobile client devices/operating
systems,

(b) the AOL product/service, including, without limitation, AOL versions 4.0 - 9.0, AOL
for Broadband, and other AOL product/service versions for PC, Mac, Unix, Linux, Pocket PC,
Palm and other client devices/operating systems, including hand-held and mobile client
devices/operating systems;

(c) the AOL Communicator product/service, including versions for Windows and Mac
client operating systems;

(d) Enterprise AIM products/services;

() the ICQ product/service including, without limitation, ICQ versions 99a — 2003b, 1CQ
Lite version 4 and other versions for PC, Mac, Pocket PC and Palm client devices; and

() CompuServe, Netscape, Road Runner, Wal-Mart Connect and Gateway.net
products/services, and other products/services, that integrate an instant messenger and/or chat
feature, including re-labeled or co-branded versions of AOL Instant Messenger (AIM).

11.  AOL’s manufacture, use, sale, offers for sale, importation into the United States,
and/or supply in or from (or causing to be supplied in or from) the United States of products,
processes, services, components, client software, server software and/or server hardware

associated with:
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(a) the AIM product/service versions 3.0 — 5.9; and

(b) the AOL product/service versions 4.0 — 9.0 (including AOL for Broadband versions)
infringes one or more claims of the ‘491 patent, literally and/or by the Doctrine of Equivalents,
directly, contributorily, by inducement or otherwise, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

12.  On information and belief, Plaintiff states that it is likely to have evidentiary
support, after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery, that AOL’s
manufacture, use, sale, offers for sale, importation into the United States, and/or supply in or
from (or causing to be supplied in or from) the United States of products, processes, services,
components, client software, server software and/or server hardware associated with:

(a) other AIM versions for PC, Mac, Unix, Linux, Pocket PC, Palm and other client
devices/operating systems, including hand-held and mobile client devices/operating systems;

(b) other AOL product/service versions for PC, Mac, Unix, Linux, Pocket PC, Palm and
other client devices/operating systems, including hand-held and mobile client devices/operating
systems;

(¢) the AOL Communicator product/service, including versions for Windows and Mac
client operating systems;

(d) Enterprise AIM products/services;

(¢) the ICQ product/service including, without limitation, ICQ versions 99a -- 2003b, ICQ
Lite version 4 and other versions for PC, Mac, Pocket PC and Palm client devices; and

(f) CompuServe, Netscape, Road Runner, Wal-Mart Connect and Gateway.net

products/services, and other products/services, that integrate an instant messenger and/or chat

feature, including re-labeled or co-branded versions of AOL Instant Messenger (AIM)
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infringes one or more claims of the ‘491 patent, literally and/or by the Doctrine of Equivalents,
directly, contributorily, by inducement or otherwise, in violation of 35 U.S.C. §271.

13.  On information and belicf, Plaintiff states that it is likely to have evidentiary
support after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery that Defendant is
engaging in willful and deliberate infringement of the ‘491 patent which justifies an increase of
three times the damages to be assessed pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284 and further qualifies this
action as an exceptional case supporting an award of reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 35
U.S.C. §285.

14. Defendant’s continued infringement of the ‘491 patent is causing and will
continue to cause irreparable injury to Plaintiff unless Defendant’s infringement activities are
enjoined by this Court.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Windy City requests that this Court enter judgment that:

A, Defendant has willfully infringed the ‘491 patent, both literally and under the
doctrine of equivalents;

B. Defendant and its agents, employees, representatives, successors, and assigns and
those acting in privy or in concert with them, be permanently enjoined from further infringement
of the ‘491 patent;

C. Plaintiff be awarded damages adequate to compensate and make Plaintiff whole
for all Defendant’s acts of infringement of the *491 patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. §284, and that

such damages be increased up to three times the amounts found or assessed;
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D. Plaintiff be granted pre-judgment and post-judgment interest on the damages
caused to it by reason of Defendant’s infringement of the ‘491 patent pursuant to 35 US.C. §
284,

E. Plaintiff be awarded costs pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284;

F. This case be declared “exceptional” within the meaning of 35 U.S.C. § 285,
entitling Plaintiff to an award of its reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses; and

G. Plaintiff be granted such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and
proper under the circumstances.

JURY TRIAL

Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Windy City hereby demands

a trial by jury on all issues so triable.

Dated: February 1, 2003 9&_ M/_\

George P. McAndrews

Peter J. McAndrews

James M. Hafertepe

Patricia J. McGrath

McANDREWS, HELD & MALLOY, LTD.
500 West Madison Street, 34% Floor
Chicago, Illinois 60661

(312) 775-8000

Attorneys for Windy City Innovations, LLC
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EXHIBIT A
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U.S. Patent Sep. 21, 1999 Sheet 1 of 22 5,956,491
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U.S. Patent Sep. 21, 1999 Sheet 4 of 22
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FIG. 7
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FIG. 8
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FIG. 13
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FIG. 15
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FIG. 17
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FIG. 21
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FIG. 25
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FIG. 27
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FIG. 28
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FIG. 29
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FIG. 31
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GROUP COMMUNICATIONS
MULTIPLEXING SYSTEM

A portion of the disclosure of this pateot document
contains material which is subject to copyright protection
The copyright owner has na objection (o a statutory fair use
of Ihis material, as it appears in Lhe files of the files or records
of the U.S. Palenl and Tradematk Office, but otherwise
reserves all copyright rights whatsoever.

I FIELD OF INVENTION

This ipvention is directed lo an apparatus, 8 manacture,
and methods for making and using the same, o a feld of
dipital electrical computer systems. Mare particularly, the
present invention is direcled 1o a digital ¢lecirical computer
system involving ¢ plerality of participator computers hioked
by 2 metwork 1o al Jeast opc of 2 plurality of participatos
compulers, the participator compulers operating in conjunc-
tian with the contrmller computer 10 handle muliplexing
operations for communications involviug groups of some of
the participalor computlers.

1i. BACKGROUND OF THE INVENTION

Mulliplexing group communications among computers
ranges from very simple to very complex communications
sysiems. At a simple level, group communications among
computers iovolves electronic mail seol in a one way
transeoission 10 all those in a group of subpgroup using, sey,
a Jocal area network Arbitrating which computers receive
elecironic mail is a rather well enderstood underiaking,

On a more complex level, corporations may link remote
offices to bave a conference by computer. A central computer
can control the multiplexing of what appears as an electronic
equivalent to 2 discussion involvisg many individuals

Even more complex is lioking of computers 10 commu-
nicate in what has become known as 2 “chal reom.” Chat
room communications can be mere texd, such as that offered
locally on s file server, or can involve graphics and certain
multimedia capability, as exemplified by such Ioternet ser-
vice providers as America Oo Line. Multiplexing in mubti-
media is more complex for this elecironic environment.

On the Internet, “chal room” communicatioas analogous
to Americz On Line have not been developed, at least in par
because Interset was stuctured for one-woy communica-
tions analogous 1o electronic mai, ralber thaa for real time
group chatl toom communications. Further, unlike the an
Tnlzrmet service provider, which hes control over both the
hardware platform aod the computer program running on the
platform to create lbe “chat room™, there is no particulsr
cantrol over the platform thal would be cocountered on the
Internet Therefore, developrment of multiplexing technol-
oy for such an environment has been minimal

Even with an emergence of the World Wide Web, which
does have certain graphical multimedia capability, sophis-
ticated chat room eommunication mudtipiexing has been the
domain of the Tnternet service providers. Users therefore
have a choice between the limiled audicnce of a particular
Internet Service provider or Lbe limiled chat capability of the
Internet.

Il SUMMARY OF THE INVENTICN

11 is an object of the present invention 1o overcome such
limitations of the prior art and o advance and improve the
technology of group computer multiplexing to enable better
computerized prowp communications

10

25

0

a5

2

-l

ft is another object of |be present invention fo provide a
computerized buman communication arbitrating and distrib-
uting syslem.

11 is yet nnolber object of the present igvention Lo provide
2 group communicalicn multiplexing syslem iovolving a
coniroller digital computer linked 10 a piurality of pantici-
palor compllers fo organize communicalions by groups of
the participalor compuiers.

It 3s still anotber object of the present invention lo ligk the
controlier computer and the plurality of computers with
tespeclive software coorlaaled 1o arbilrate multiplexiog
activilies

Tt is stll a further object of the present invention io
provide o chat capability suilable for handling graphical,
textual, and multimedia information in a pletform indepen-
dent manner.

These and other objects and wiilities of the invenotion,
which appareni from the discussion herein, are addressed by
a eompulerized human communicalion arbilraling and dis-
tributing systcm. The systern includes o controller dipital
electrical compuler aod a plurality of participator digital
camputers, each of the participalor compulers inclading an
imput device for receiving beman-inpul information and an
oulput device for presenting information to a usce having a
user identity. A coopection such as 1hs Internet links the
controller computer wirh each of the participsior computers.

Controller soffware reos oo the controller compuler, pro-
gramming the controlier computer 1o arbitrate io sccordance
wilh predefined rules including said user identity, which
ones of the participator comptiters cap interact in ooe of 3
plurelily of groups commusicaling through the controller
compuler and to distibute real time data to the respective
ones of the groups.

Participatar software runs op each of the participater
comphters lo propram cach of the parlicipator computers 1o
operale b user interface, The user interface permits one of the
users lo send andfur recsive a mulimedia informativn
message 10 the eontroller computer, which arbitrates which
of the participeior comptters receives the multimedia infor-
mation message. The controller compuler also conveys the
muitimedia information message to the sclecied participator
computers 10 present the mulimedia information 10 the
respective uscr.

Therefore, for a computer system iovolviog a plumlity of
programmed participalor compulers running the participator
compuler program can interact through a programmed coa-
troller compuler with the controller compuier multiplexing
the communicalions for groups formed from the plurality, as
well a5 arbitrating communications behavior

V. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE DRAWINGS

FIG. 1 is a depiction of bardware suilable for performing
the present invention;

FIG. 2 is a communications overview of ibe present
invention

FIG. 3 i5 a data and communicalions dependency diagram
for the controller group channel structyre of the presenl
inveation.

FIG. 4 is a flow chart of the central controller Joop
commugications for the conlroller compuler.

FIG. 5 is a client channe] data structure and information
flow diagram of the present invention

FIG. 6 is a parlicipator software out-of-band multimedia
information fow diagram of the present invention.

FIG 7 is an ifustration of 2 login/password screen of the
presen! igvention,
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FG. § is an Hustration of a copfirmation screen of The
preseal iovention.

FIG. 9 is an illustration of a channel list aren sereen of the
presenl invention.

FIG. 10 is an illustration of a Mew Channel option
pull-down menu screen of the present invention.

FIG. 11 is ap illustration of a member on & oew chanoel
screen of (be present invention

FIG. 12 is an illusiration of a second member oo the new
chanmel sereen of the present invention.

FIG. 13 i5 wp illustration of a communication on the new
channe] screen of the present inveation.

FIG 14 is ap ilustration of a private message window on
the pew chanvel screen of the present inveotion

FIG. 15 is an illustration of a private message displayzd
on the privale message window on the new channel screen
of the presenl igvention.

FIG. 16 is a further illusiration of the privale message on
ibe private message window oo new channe] seress of the
present invention.

FIG. 17 is an iliusiration of an ateibute revocation on the
new chapnel screen of the present invention

FIG. 18 is a further illustralion of the new chanoel screen
of the present invention,

FIG. 19 is 2z iliustration of the chanuel list window screen
of the preszat iovention.

FIG. 20 is an illustration of the 1oggle posting oplion on
a sereen of tbe present invention.

FIG. 21 is ao illustration of a moderated version of the
new channel screen of the presenl invention.

FIG. 22 is an illustraton of a communicatios on 2
moderation window screen of the present iovention.

FIG. 23 is an illustration of 1he communication passed on
10 the moderated version of the new channel screen of the
presenl invention.

FIG. 24 is an illusiration of a communication, for sending
a graphical multimedia message, on to the moderated ver-
sion of tbe pew chunnel screen of (ke present invention.

FIG. 25 is an illustration, showing the name of the URL,
on a moderated version of the new channel sereen of the
present invention.

FIG. 26 is an illusiration of dala associated with be
grephical multimedia message on & moderated version of the
new chaonel screet of tbe present invention. .

FIG. 27 is an illustration of a property editor, suitable for
a dialog 1o change lokens, on & screen of fhe present
invention.

FIG. 28 is an illustration of a text-based interface login/
password screen of the present invention.

FIG. 29 is an illustration of a text-based interface group
screen of the present invention.

FIG. 30 is aootber illustrulion of a lext-bused interface
group screen of the present foveation.

F1G.-31 is another illustration of a texi-bnsed interface
group screen of the present invealion.

FIG. 32 is ap illusiration of a texi-based interface privale
message screcn of the present ipventjon.

FIG. 33 js apotber illustration of o lext-based Interface
privele message screen of the presem invention.

FIG. 34 is apother illustration of » text-based interface
proup with moderator screen of 1he present invention.

V. DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF THE
DRAWINGS

In providing a detailed description of 2 preferred cmbodi-
ment of the present invention, rcference is made lo an
appendix bereto, including the following items

L1}

at

5

35
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Appendix Contents
ALLUSER C
ALLUSER H
CHANNEL. C

CHANNEL HLP

CLISTC

CLISTH

CLISTHLP

EDITUSER C

EDITUSER H

ENTRYFRM C

ENTRYFRM H

ENTRYFRM HLP

HELP C

HELPH

HELPSCR C

HELPSCR H

LINEEDIT C

LINEEDIT H

LIST C

LISTH

LOGIN HLP

MAIN C

MAKEFILE

MESSAGE C

MESSAGE H

MODERAT HLP

PRIVATE C

FRIVATE H

PRIVATE HLP

SOCKIO C

SOCKIO H

STRC

STR H

UCCLIENT

USER C

USER H

WINDOW C

WINDOW H

Mole that the appendix includes code for two differemt
embodiments: § Tellnet embodiment and a JAVA embodi-
ment. Documentation snd error messages, help files, log
files, are alsa included in the appendix. While platform
conlrolled embodiments are within 1be scope of the
iovention, it is particularly advantageons to heve 3 platform
independenl ¢mbodiment, i.c., an embadiment that is byte
code courpiled.

Rsferring pow 1o FIG. 1, the overall funciioning of a
computerized buman communication arbilrating and distrib-
uting System 1 of the present invention is shown with odd
numbers desigoating hardware or programmed bardware,
and evep pumbers designating computer program logic and
data flow The System 1 includes a digital Cantroller Com-
puter 3, such as an Inlernel service provider-type compuler.
The Controlier Compwter 3 is operating with an operating
system

System 1 also includes & plurality of digital Parlicipator
Computers 5, each of which may be 2o IBM-compatible
personal computer with a processor and a DOS operating
system Each of the Participator Compusers § inciudes an
Toput Pevice 7 for receiving buman-ipput informalion from
& respeciive bumman user. The Ioput Device 7 can be, for
example, a keyboard, mouse or the like. Euch of the Par-
ticipator Compulers 5 also includes an Quiput Device 9 for
presenting information to the respective user: The Oulput
Device % can be & moaitor, printer (Such as a dot-matrix or
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laser printer), or preferably both wre used Esch of the
Participator Computers 5 also includes 2 Memory 11, such
a5 & disk slorage means.

The System 1 includes a Connection 13 located between,
s0 8s 10 link, the Controller Computer 3 with cach of the
Parlicipator Compulers 5. The Conneclion 13 can be an
[niernel or more particularly, a World Wide Web connection.

The Controller Compuler 3 js running and under the
control of Controller Software 2, which directs the Conlrol-
ler Computer 3 1o arbitrate in aecordance with predefined
riles including a user identity, which unes of the Participator
Computers § can interact in ope of a plurality of groups
through the Controller Computer 3 and lo distribute real
time data to the respective ones of the groups.

The Parlicipator Compulers 5 are soch running and under
the contro] of Participalor Software 4, which directs cach of
ihe Participator Computers 5 (o bandle 3 user Interface &
permitting one said user (0 send a multimedia information
Message 8 to the Controller Computer 3, which arbitrates
whick of the Psrticipaior Computers 5 receives the multi-
media information Message B and which conveys the mul-
tiredia information Message § to the selected participaior
computers 5 to present the mullimedia information Message
8 to the respective user

The present invention comprehends communicaling ofl
electrically communicable multimedia information as Mes-
sage B, by such means s poisters, for example, UJRLs
URLs can point to pre-stored zudio and video
commienications, which the Contraller Comptiter 3 can fetch
and communicate to the Participator Compulters 5.

Turming now (o FIG. 2, there is shown a communications
overview of the present invention. Beginnming with the
Controller Computer Software 2, reference is made (o Block
10, which illustrales demmlliplexing and multiplexing opera-
tions carritd oul by message lype on APl messages of all
1ypes. Block 14 links to Block 12, which is illustrative of
channel A. . . . Block 10 also links (o Block 14, which
Dustrates hondling private message A Block 10 alsa links
10 Block 16, illnstrative of bandling out-of-band media.
Block 10 additionally linles to Block 18, which illusirates
usynchronous slatus messages.

Multipke conneclions between the controlier compuler 3
and a phurality of participator compuaters 5 permil commu-
nication implemented via the interplay of controller software
2 and panticipator software 4. With particalar regard to the
participator software 4 iilustrated in FIG 2, Block 20 is
lustrative of demuliiplexing and multiplexing operations
carried oul by message type on APl messages of all types.
Block 20 links to Block 22, which is illusirative of chanoel
A. .. .Block 20 also finks 1o Block 24, which illustrates
bandling privale message A. Block 20 also Lrks 1o Block 26,
iHustrative of handliog out-of-band medin via Block 28,
which is illustrative of 2 Web browser or auxiliary compuler
program, Block 20 also Jinks to Block 30, which ilfustralcs
asynchronous status message bapdling via Block 32, illus-
tralive of user ioterface chiccls windows aed screens.

De/oniliiplexing via API provides 2 “virtual coppection™
between Chanpel, Privale Message, and Multimedia objects
in the controller computer 3 and each participator computer
5 An allermate archilecture is 1o allow for a separate
cooneclion berween sach abject so Lbat multiplexing/
demultiplexing is not necessary and each cbject handies its
own connection This wonld influence system performance,
however.

Turping now to FIG. 3, 2 dala apd communications
dependency diagram controlier group channel structure is
illusirated. Begiuning from what is designated as a portion

it
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of Block 10 the Jogic flows to Block 34 to copsider JOIN,
LEAVE, STATUS, SETCHAN AP! instructions. Block 34
examines member list muintenance instreclions, accessing
Block 36 to check permissions, lst users, and change
atlribuies. Note the exploded window 3B shows a display of
member information including s user's pame, personal
information, and attributes/properties/permissions
{operations involving the subsequenlly discussed tokens),
ie., stored per channel attributes under cach member. In any
case, confirmalion or denial of access is communicated via
Block 48 for multiplexing return of stohis messapes (0 2
larget object.

From the portion of Block 10, the Jogic flows to Block 42
for MESSAGE and MODMSEG API instruciicns. Block 42
tests which of the two instructions were received, snd for
MODMSG, the logic flows ta Block 44, which 1ests whether
the user is & moderator. If the user is pot 2 maoderator, the
logic Bows 10 Block 46, which seads » denial message
through Block 40. If, however, the in Block 44 the user is a
moderator, the Togic flows 10 Block 48 for a repeat 1o all ist
members who are permitted 10 see Lhe message, via Block
40,
Returning to Block 42, if MESSAGE is detected, the logic
flows to Block 50, which iests whether a user has post
permission. If the user has pos! permission, the logic flows
io Block 48, efc. If {be user does nol have post permission,
the logic flows to Block 52 lo forward the message 10
moderators for approval, via Block 40.

Additiopally, the logic fows from Block 10 10 Bleck 54
for a URL API instruction. Block 54 lesis whether the uscr
has graphical muliimedia communication privileges, and if
not, tbe logic fiows via Block 56, which sends 2 depial
message vin Block 40. Otherwise, if the user does have
graphical multimedia communications privileges in Block
54, Block 58 sends prapbical multimedia information 1o all
approved vsers via Black 40.

Turning mow o FIG. 4, central conlrolier loop comma-
nications is illustrated. For the dats on centrad poll point 58
{see Appendix POLL__POINT), 2 “do” loop begins a1 Block
60 for tach connection. Block 62 tesls whether byies are
available on the dala stream. If they are, the byles are added
10 user spacs FIFO per conseclion at Block 64, Jeading to
Block 66, which lests whether there are oy more conpee-
tiops. Note thal in FIG. 4, if there are no more bytes
available in Block 62, the logic skips to Block 66, 2nd if
Block 66 is ool’ finished with all conpections, the loop
returns to Block 62. When all connections bave been com-
pleted in Block 62, the logic flows to Block 68, which looks
for an available complete data instruction for any conpection
by extracting packets byle-wist from tbe FIFQ. Thereafter,
Block 70 tests whether there is a complete respanse avail-
able from the participalor computer. [f the respomse is
complete, the logic flows to Block 72 which, using »
command type, demulliplexes into an appropriale obiecl
{outpul FIFOs may be filled here for any conuection). The
logic from Block 72 joins the “ao’™ branch from Block 70 at
Block 74, which eoables unblocking for writing connections
for coly congections with data availsble to write, looping
back 1o Block SB.

F1G. 5 shows a cljenl chanpel data structure and infor-
mation flow diagram. From a message thal is demultiplexed
by message iype, lhere are six possibilitiess ERROR
MESSAGE, MESSAGE, STATUS, JOINCHANNEL,
LEAVECHANNEL, 2od MODMSG. ERROR MESSAGE
is communicaled to Block 76, where the error message is
displayed to the transcripi ins the Lranscripl area of Block 8¢
MESSAGE is communicated 1o Block 78 where the mes-
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sage is immediately added 10 Ihe transcripd in transcripl acea
78. STATUS is commumicaled lo Block 82 io updaie user
dala structure; JOINCHANNEL is commugicated lo Block
84 10 remove a user from the member list and display the
change; and LEAVECHANNEL is communicated io Block
86. From Block 82, Block 84, and Block 88, the Yogic fiows
1w Block 88, which includes a member list, a member
identifier, known attributes/permissions/properiies, and per-
sonal information. From Block 88, the lopic proceeds fo
Block 90, a member list area, and on to Block 92 to compose
@ request to chenge a member attribute. This “SETCHAN
repuest is then communicaled o Block 24, which is the
multiplexer feading o the controller compuier copnection.

MODMSG is communicated to Block 96, which sends the
message o ibe moderation zrea of Block 98, and then 1o
Block 100 jo resubmil a member messape as approved,
thereby copveying a MODMSG request 1o Block 94.

Note that a response is prepared in the respooss area of
Block 102. If the response is a standard message, il is
conveyed to Block 104 1o compose the response inlo 2
controller message, thereby sending 8 MESSAGE reguest 10
box 4. If, however, the messege is & graphical information
submission, the logic flows from Block 102 to Block 105 to
compose Lhe graphical information submission iolo » con-

troller message, thereby sending a2 URL request to Block 94 2

FIG. 6 is a participator software out-of-band mulimedia
informetion Bow diagram, which begins with Black 26, the
multimedia type paich point. Black 26 leads to Block 102,
which tests whetber there is an interpally bandlable multi-
media type. If nat, Block 104 Jaoks up a suitable agen! for
data type presentation, which leads to Block 1068, which 1esis
whether an ageol was found. If not, Block 108 reporis
Jocation of data to the user for future referencing. If the agent
is found in Block 106, the lopic Sows o Block 110, whick
involes ihe agent with a data reference 1o present the data.

If the multimedia type is internally handlable from Block
102, tbe Togic Aows lo Block 112, which tests whether this
is 1 member associated image. I it is a member associzted
image, Biock 14 displays the image next to member
identity information, 2pd if il is not, the Jogic fows 1o Block
116, which tesis if this is a member public data reference
(c.g., a URL) If a URL.is detecled ai Block 116, Block 118
jnvokes an exiernal data 1ype viewer only on demand of the
operator of the participator sofiware, and otherwise Block
120 stores (he reference for future use by Lhe operator of the
participator software, or treets Lhe reference as an exteroally
bandled multimedia type (al the user's option}.

‘With furtber regard to the manner of interaction between
the controller computer 3 aed the parlicipator compuiers 5,
and their respective computer programs 2 and 4, includes a
moderation capability that is controlled, or urbitrated, pur-
suant to system 1 recognizing user identity. Note thal using
the user identity for moderalion purposes is o use additiotial
1o the use of the user identity for secucily purposcs.

One embodiment of the present invention is to bring chat
capabilily to the internel and World Wide Web. However,
apother cmbodimen! involves noo-inlernel relay chal In
either emboditnent, Sysiem 1 is stale driven such thal
synchronous and asynchronous messapes can be communi-
cated. For an asyochronous potificetion, each message is
sent through the system I (API), which updates the infor-
mation op (be cutput device of tke participalor computers 5.
For a synchronous potification, & participator compuler 5
tust interrogate Ibe systee 1 for a message.,

With regard ta the arbitrating of the controller computer
3 is directed by the contralier computer program 2 to use
“identity lokeus”, which arc pieres of informatico associ-

il

8

ated with user identity. The pieces of information are stored
in memory 4 in 2 control computer dalabase, along with
personal information sbont the user, such ns the user’s age.
The conlrol computer datobase serves as a repository of
tokens far other programs 1o access, thereby zffording
information 1o olberwise independent computer sysiems. In
the database, tbe storsge of lokens can be by user, group, and
coptent, and disttibution controls cap alsoe be placed on the
user’s lokens o5 well as the database.

Each token is used to coptrol the ability of a user W gain
access 1o other lokens in a token hierarchy arbitration
procass. The arbitration slso includes controlling a user’s
ability to moderate commupications involving a group or
subgronp of the participator compuiers 5. Opce in & group,
lemporary tokens are assigned for priority 1o moderaie/
submoderale groups (a group is somelimes known as a
channe] in multiplexinp ferminology).

Accordingly, tokens are used by the controller computer
5 10 ceotrol a user’s proup priority and moderation
privileges, as well as coowolling who joins the group, who
leaves the group, and tbe visibility of members in the group.
Visibility refers lo whelber a user is allowed to know another
user is in the chat group.

Tokens are also vsed 1o permit 4 user’s coatrol of identity,
and in pdority contests between 2 users, for example, a
challenge 25 10 whether a first user can ses 2 sccond user

Censorship, which broadly encompasses control of what
is said ip 4 group, is also arbilrnted by means of Lhe tolens.
Censorstip can control of access 1o system 1 by identily of
the user, which is associaled wilb the user's lokens. By
checking the tokens, a user's access can be controlled per
group, as well as in piving group priorily, mederation
privileges, etc.

Censorship also can use the lokens for real time control of
data {osc, 1ex, video, eudio) from and to users, as well as
conirol over multirgedia URLs—quantity, type, and subject.

With regard to conlrolling communications in a group
{which is ip essence a collection of user identilies), control
extends 10 seeing messages, seeing the user, regulating the
size of the communication, 2s well as the ability to sec and
write 1o a specific user. Contro further extends to the ability
1o send multimedia messages.

Note thst tokens for members in growp can involve
multiples fomned in real lime, say, within the spag of a
conversation. For example, for privaie commumication,
tokens are immediately formed to define 2 group of Z users.
Hierarchical groups wishin groups can also be formed, with
each inberiting the properties of the group before it. Thus, 2
subgroup can incinde up to all members or more by adding
any surplus 1o the former group.

With further regard 10 the contrafler computer 3, e.g., &
server, information is cootrolled for distribution 1o the user
imterfaces at selected ones of the panicipalor compuiers 5.
The controller compuler pragram, io one embodimest, can
be a resident program inlerface (such 2s a JAVA pplication).
There can be a loken editor object (window/tear down, ele}
per group, privale communicalion, user, chaooel listings,
user listings, etc Each can link up in 2 token hierarchy for
arbitratico conlral.

The controller computer 5, by mesos of the contrailer
computer program 2, keeps track of states and asynchronous
messages as well as generating a synchronous message as
user logs in or interogates system 1

Wilb regard to multimedia information messages 8, such
messages are of independent data types, c.g., sudiofvideo
data types. The conlent of the message {e.g., 8 URL) permits
the System 1 to mrtomatically determine the bandlivg of the
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message: either the Controller Computer 3 passes the con-
teot of Messzpe 8 direcily, ar the Coptroller Computer 3
determioes from {be Message 8 bow 10 find the content, say
viz Netscape. Accordingly, Message 8 can communicale
videa and sound (or other multimedia, e.g., 2 URL) to users,
subject only o the server arbitration conlrols over what can
be senl

Turning mow 1o ap illustratiop of wsing the invention, (ke
session starts with verifyiog the user's identity (a1 FIG. 7).
The login/password screen is shown, and the user eolers
hisher assipned login/password combination and clicks the
“Login To Chat” button. If the password was catered
correcily, a confirmation box sppears on (he screen.

Then the chunnel list area is shown at FIG. 8. The Channe]
{.ist area is 2 window which shows 2 lisL of all of the groups
currently oo the server in active compounication. Because no
ope is yet connecled i Lhis example, there are no groups
currently available on the screen

To create 3 new group, the “New Channel™ option is
selected from p puBi-down ment (a8 FIG. 9). The neme of the
channe] is entered by the input device 7.

If the user bes permission (this one does), 2 new chanoel
is created for the growp (a1 FIG. HI). The window that
displays the chanoel arca bas three regions: the bolidm
region, where responses are entered; the larges) region,
where 2 transcript of the communication is followed; and the
rightmos! region, which lists the group’s current members
This list is continuously updated with asynchranously gen-
eraled status messages received immediately when a new
member joins the gronp. Ooly “DMARKS” is cumrently in
this group. The “MWU™ is the properties currently associ-
ated with DMARKS—ihe ability to moderate, write lo the
chanpel, and send multimedia messages.

A mew member bas joined the chanael, and the member
list status ares is updated right away (at FIG 11). This new
member has a login of “ME.”

The user DMARKS now types “helle thers” inio ibe
tesponse area and presses RETURN (at FIG. 12}. This
messape is passed 1o the controller computer 5, which scods
the message 1o all channe) members, ie, those using par-
ticipator computers 5, including DMARKS.

The user ME now sends a message 10 the controller: “bi
there” (at FiG. 13). This message is also senl {o all members
by 1be controlier compuler 5. Now user DMARKS clicks
{using input device 7, a mouss) op the name of the user
“ME" in the member List window. The participator software
4 will pow create a private message window, so that the
users ME and DMARKS can exchange private messages.
Privale messages are onfy seat 1o the intended recipient by
the controller, and po one else.

A private message window appears in response 1o
DMARKS's request Lo open privale commupjcations with
ME (at F1G. 14). Now DMARKS types 2 message into the
private message window's respopse ares to ME: “this mes-
sage is seen only by the wser ME” When complete, the
participator software 4 will forward this message o the
controller computer 3.

In response, the user ME kas entered "This is the private
wessape response that it only secn by the user DMARKS,”
which has beea forwarded 10 user DMARKS (a1 FIG 15)
This message is displayed immediately oo DMARKS's
window.

DMARKS now retums to the chanoel window for the
group "TESTCHANNEL" (at FIG. 16). To modify the
permission attributes associated with user ME on the cban-
nel TEST CHANNEL, DMARKS (who is 2 moderator of
the chanael), clicks on the user ME in the member list to
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select ME, pulls down tbe Moderalor menu, and selecls
~Toggle Moderator.” This removes Ibe moderalor privileges
from ME.

As a result of the audbule revncation, lhe “M” hes
disappeared from next to ME’s name in the member list (al
FIG. 17), indicating that the propenty is no Ionger associaled
with tbe user ME.

Now DMARXS returns to the Chanoel List window (a1
FIG. 18). DMARKS wishes to fully moderale the contents
of the chanoel TESTCHANNEL, censoring all unwanted
communications to the chanoel. DMARKS retums lo the
channel iist, znd selects the chanpe] TESTCHANNEL by
clickipg ob its nume in the channe] list.

Now DMARKS selects the “Togple All Posting” option in
the Maintenance pull-down mem: {at FIG. 19). This will tum
off the chanpel property “posiing,” (or sending tommuni-
calions i the chapnel withoul moderator approval) which
will be indicaled by the removal of the letter “P* from next
to the pame TESTCHANNEL (at FIG. 26).

Now the letter “P™ is removed from after the name
TESTCHANNEL i the Chaonel List window (a1 FIG. 21),
indicating the! this channe! is now moderaled and will oaly
bave free posting ability by designated members.

Now, type user ME (who is also oo chepnel
TESTCHANNEL) wishes 10 send communications: “this
will pot be writien direcdy fo the chanoel” (at FIG. 22}, The
conlroller, insiead of sending it immediately to the chanoe]
(o be seen by all wermbers, will instead forward the message
to the moderators for approval. The moderator, DMARKS,
will then see the message on the Moderation Window, which
provides a preview of 1oy messages Lo be scol To approve
a messepe for general viewing, DMARKS now clicks oa the
RIESSARE.

Now thal DMARXKS has clicked directly on the message,
il is displayed inside the group's Channel window for all
members 1o see (at FIG. 23).

DMARXS now wishes lo send 2 graphical multimedis
message. ‘This implementation sends graphical multimedia
images by allowing a chaone] member to specify an Inlernet
URL of & graphical multimedia resource fo be presented 1o
the group members. In this example, DMARKS wishes 10
send the URL “hitp:/ferww.ais.oet” (corresponding to the
Warld Wide Web bome pape of American Information
Syslems, Inc.) o the channel members DMARKS enters the
URL. inlo the response window, and selects “Send URL”
from the Modesator pull-down menu (st FIG. 24).

The coatroller compuier 5 oow passes the URL 10 the
chante) members. This participstor software 4 performs two
aclions in response 1o tbe praphical multimedia display
request. The first is to put the pame of the URL omio the
transcript of the group’s chamnel, 5o that il cap be read by
proup members. The second response is Lo bave the partici-
pator software show the data associated with the praphical
multimedia message in 8 buman interpretable way (a1 F1G.
25). To do this, the perticipalor software 6 cither uses built
in rules to decide bow the graphical multimedia data is 1o be
presented, or locates apother program suitable to present the
data. In this case, the software 6 is wiilizing Netscape
Navigator™, 3 program for displaying graphical mulfimedia
documents specified by @ URL {at FIG. 26). loside the
Navigator window, the graphical mullimedia content, the
bome page of ALS, is shown

Fimlly, DMARKS wishes 10 mapually medify the
sltribute tokens associaled with the user {al FIG 27} The

5 user invokes the Property Editor dialog. which allows 1he

user 1o view and change the tokens associated with a vser.
Aproperty of a given user is delermined by the identificr and
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Properly nnmes. An ald value of the property is shown, and
a lokep value can be changed in the “Mew Value” feld. Wilh
this property editor, 2 user with suffieient pormissions
(tokens) can change any of the tokens of security parameters
of any user, or a user’s ability 10 change securily parameters
can be restricied.

To start with an alicroate embodiment using a lext-based
interface, a user is presenied by the login/password screen
{at FIG. 28). This screen is where a user enlers the infor-
mation that proves his/ber identity. The user must now epler
his/ber login and password 1o identify themselves.

After the user has been identified by the controller the
Channel List screen appears {8t FIG. 29). The names of
chanpels and their associaled properties are showz on this
screen. By using the arrow keys and highlighting the desired
channel, ME may enter aey publicly joinable group.
Curreotly, there is odly one group TESTCHANNEL, which
ME will joio.

Now the screen for the chaanel TESTCHANNEL appears
{at FIG. 29} The screcn is split inlo four regions. The bottom
ieft region is the response Hoe, where messapes users wish
to enter appear. The upper loft region is the trapscript arca
where the communications of the group’s chanpe] appesr as
they occur. The upper right region is the Member List
serion, where 2 continwously updeled list of members'
names appear, with their atfributes.

A messape appesrs in Ibe transcripl ared. The conlratier
bas forwarded 2 messige to the group from DMARKS,
“hello there” (a1 FIG. 31), which is seen by all mermbers of

the group, including ME. Now ME will respond, by entering 3

*hi there™ into {be response area.

When ME is finisked enlering his response, the partici-
pator software forwards the response lo the cogtroller, which
sends it 10 the members of the channel. In ibe Lranscripl area,
the participaior software nolifies the user that it has received
a privalc message from DMARKS, which is waiting inside
the privaic message screen. To see (he privale message, ME
presses the private message screen bol key.

A privaie messape screen appears (st FIG. 32), and the
private message from DMARKS is at the botiom of the
transcript arca. Now to reply, ME types his response info the
reSpanse ared.

Now ME will return 1o the screen for tbe chapnel
TESTCHANNEL. The mcmber list area bas changed
because DMARKS bas revoked ME's moderalor periis-
sion. ME is no longer permitied to ses the permissions of
otber users, so this information has been removed from his
display (a1 F1G. 33). The only information be can sex now
is who is moderator (a1 FIG. 34). A“** pext w the identifier
of a member of the group indicates the member is a
moderator of tbe group. ME is no Jooger o moderator, and
therefore o “*™ does not appear the identifier ME.

To further exemplify the use of the present invention, 1he
following is & wranscript of commuaicalions produced in
accardance herewith,

POWERGQUALITY JOHNMUNG: unclear aboul meaning
of “first contingency”

POWERQUALITY SAM: mile, that is correct on [EEE 519
POWERQUALITY SKLEIN: In assessing network security
(against outage) the firsl contingencies are lested lo see how
the power system should be reconfigured 1o avoid getting 2
second contingeocy and cascading into an outage.
POWERQUALITY MSTEARS: These oulages point oul the
need for relinbility as part of the overall cusiomes picturs of

£Q
POWERQUALTTY BRIAN: Hi Jennifer, hit crt-p for pri-
vale messagac
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POWERQUALITY SKLEIN: Ip simpler terms, a single
point failure shouldn’t crash the system.
POWERQUALITY SXLEIN: Arc we al! chatted owt?
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: brian, johnmung has been
banned!!! why?
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: 10 way, pew subject
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: jus! a sec, andy
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: No baoning on this channel,
Jobn is back on
POWERQUALITY TKEY: icee 519 limils the harmonic
current a cusiomer can inject back into the pec and Emit the
vihd the the utility provides a1 the PCC .
POWERQUALITY JOHNMUNG: thanks guys, for unban-
ning me- i’ve been (hrown out of betler places thap this!
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: New subject .. now . ..
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: good one john. . . . 3)
POWERQUALITY MSTEARS: For critical facilities dual
feeds or other backup capebility need to be ecopomically
evalualed t Leep the facility in operation
POWERQUALITY SAM: John, I remember that club very
well
POWERQUALITY JOHNMUNG: question: please com-
ment on frequency of compleints involving spikes, sags or
harmonics
POWERQUALITY WARD: Problems caused by saps is the
maio complaint,
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: What subject does anyoue
wani 1o 56 the next chal
POWERQUALITY WARD: Surges is probably next; bar-
monics really don’t cause thal many problems, although
they are centainly there.
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: what is the solution ward?
POWERQUALITY TKEY: Agree they ore the most frequent
(sags) and the pane} session on the cost of voltage sags a
PES drew 110 people
POWERQUALITY SAM: barmapics tend 1o be an interior
problem within a facility,ratber than on ibe distribution
syslem
POWERQUALITY WARD: The best solution is making the
equipment less susceptible 10 saps This reguires working
with the manufacturers.
FOWERQUALITY ANDYV: won't tbat cost more
POWERQUALITY MSTEARS: The complaint of surges
covers meny things in the cusiomers eyes sags bave become
a real problem because they are barder fo resolve
POWERQUALITY GRAVELY: Jobu-The latest EPRI
results confirms the 9049 of the time SGS are the problem
and shorl ferm ones.
POWERQUALITY WINDSONG: What is the topic for the
2577
POWERQUALITY WARD: Each problem can be deall with
5 it occurs, but the lime invelved gels very expensive.
POWERQUALITY JOHNMUNG: making equipment less
susceplible causes legal problems For menufacturers- as each
improvemnt con be cited by compinanl as example of
malfcasance
POWERQUALITY WARD: AndyV: The cost to the manu-
facturer increases. The overall. cos! to everyone involved
decreases
POWEBRQUALITY TKEY: customer pays any way you cut
it, if the egpl is more immune customers pay only ence
instead of every time the process fails
POWERGQUALITY BRIAN: The lopic is regurding Power
Queality
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: This chal is available for
everyone 24 hours a day
POWERQUALTTY ANDYV: ddosr>>will the manufacturer
spend more 1o produce a btiter product
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POWERQUALITY WARD: And 1s Tom says, the cost lo
the cuslomer is far jess.
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: This chat will be functioning
24 hrsfday
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: please usas it
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: The next panel discussion is
November 15th
POWERQUALITY WARD: Andy, tbat’s where siandards
come in.
POWERQUALITY SKLEIN: Is tbe customer capsble of
resolving the fingerpointing among tbe mapufacturers apd
utilities?
POWERQUALITY DDORR: andy, only if the end users
create a market for pg compatible eqpl by demanding better
producis
POWERQUALITY MSTEARS: The mapufacturers prob-
lems in including fxes is being competative with some who
doeso™t provide the fix
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: how will we educate the pen-
cral consumer?
POWERQUALITY GRAVELY: Is it possible 1o bave a basic
theroe 1opic or some core questions for November 15 chal?
POWERQUALITY WARD: Stap, the cuslomer cannotl be
expected 1o resolve the fingerpointing. The mapufacturers
and utilities need 1o work logether.
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: about power qualily and reli-
ability?
POWERQUALITY SELEIN: If eleciric power is going lo
be treated as a fungible commodity, there bas fo be 2
definition. Like, everyone knows what number 2 heating oil
is.
POWERQUALITY SAM: ]deally & menufacturer would not
be zble lo compeie if they don'l add the protective function
in their products, but alot more public education is required
before we get 1o this peint.
POWERQUALITY WARD: Andy, there are many ways 10
educate {he cusiomers, but they require a ot of conlact
between the utility and the customers. The Western
Resources Power Techoology Ceoter in Wichiia is doing it,
just a5 an example.
POWERQUALITY DDORR: siandard power vs premium
power is ope salution as is 5id gpt vs Pg compatible eqpt
POWERQUALITY SKLEIN: 1 want 1o buy mumber 2
slectric power and to be able to check (be nameplates of my
appliances 1o be sure they cno take it Just like [ buy regular
gasoline.
POWERQUALITY MSTEARS: Sam—1 agree, that is
partly the utilities responsibiliiysince we serve the cuslomers
POWERQUALITY BBOYER: What differentiales number
2 from oumber 17
POWERQUALJTY SKLEIN: 1 used the anelogy of number
2 beating ofl. I don't dmow what pumber 1 heating oil is.
POWERQUALITY DDORR: Number two has cap swilch-
ing and all the pormal willily operationz] events while
number one is much better
POWERQUALJITY SKEEIN: Perhaps we can just say regu-
lar vs hiph test.
POWERQUALITY SAM: milke, yes a joint effont between
the utility, mapufacturer apd standards juristiclions is a goal
for wilicarp as we move forward with offering from owr
strategic marketing partpers, and bring PQ tectmologies 10
the public
POWERQUALITY TKEY: We are finding thal many mfigrs
wanl to produce pg compatible equipment, bul ey bave no
clue as lo what to st for
POWERQUALTTY ANDYV: Tom>>will the [EC standards
help?
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POWERQUALITY TKEY: Its up to the utility to belp define
normal events TEC will lake ime

POWERQUALITY SKLEIN: You can’t have » commodity
product with all the variation in specifications we have been
discussing. It has to be regular, presnium, and super pramium
or # won'l work.

POWERQUALITY JOHNMUNG: Tom as a former manu-
facturer i sympathize—your work at PEAC is invaluable but
anecdotal knowledge from wtility people on the Sring line is
equally important

POWERQUALITY TKEY: Super premiure, does that mean
a UPS?

POWERQUALITY ANDYV: how do you slop a facility
from affecting you super-premium power?
FOWERQUALITY TKEY: John, Gond Point
POWERQUALITY SAM: Tkey, = ups, local geoeration or
redundanl service

POWERQUAL{TY SKLEIN: This is what 1 meant earlier
by cleciricity being a non-virmalizable service. You can"t
make each customer see [he power system as though they
had heir own dadicaled generating plast
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: THE CHAT CHANNEL WILL.
BE OPEN 24/HRS/DAY 7 DAYS A WEEK
POWERQUALITY TKEY: 1 must sign out for about 3
minutes but 1"l be back

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: OK TOM
POWERQUALITY MSTEARS: PQ for [acilities aeed 10 be
doae with a system perspective to to get the righl resolution
POWERQUALITY BBOYER: Andy’s gquestion is still
relevani—how do slop a facility from downgrading utitity
service 1o other customers?

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: MIKE>>LETS SWITCH
BACK TO RETAIL WHEELING

POWERQUALTTY WARD: You work with that customer 1o
do whatever s needed to correet their disturbances,
POWERQUALITY BBOYER: Be wore specific
POWERQUALITY MSTEARS: Inieraction between [acil-
ites can be evaluated and designed for

POWERQUALITY JORNMUNG: is a key to hardeniag it
belps 1o identify the most sensitive circuils, i.e. micropro-
cessor logic, test for vulnerability under common surges,
sags, rfi, and then notify users that their equipment conlains
these subsystems- [or a star

POWERQUALITY ERIAN: kI DOUG
POWERQUALITY GRAVELY: Briar: Are you saving this
session as a file? Can we gel a list of chal session partici-
pants?

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: s, we may
POWERQUALITY DMARKS: gravely: bit TAB apd use
the arrow keys 1o pape through the list of participants
POWERQUALITY SK1EIM: Will 1he session be available
for downloading?

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: yes, Mike we will publish in
PQ Magezine

POWERQUALITY WARD: Pant of the agreement for high
quality power should be that the cuslomer receiving the
power will not distusb the wtility system.
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: if jobn let'sus . . . .
POWERQUALITY GRAVELY: | tried that, however, net-
criser has a sofiware problem and T caonol see all of the
names.

POWERQUALITY SAM: most utiliies rales and regula-
lions already require thai 2 customer ool pul anylhing back
out on the utility system

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: MIKE G.»>WE WILL PUB-
LISH THIS IN PQ MAG NEXTMONTH IF ASNDY LETS
us
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POWERQUALITY BRIAN: HOW ABOUT IT ANDY?
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: ok
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: COOL
POWERQUALITY WARD: Standards will have to be set
for whal constitutes s disturbance, and then the wtility should
work with customers, install filters, etc, to be suse they stay
within the rules.
POWERQUALJITY BRLAN: THANKS ANDY
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: 2 meeting review O 2 sum-
mary of events
POWERQUALITY GRAVELY. It would be gaod 1o take a
few minules 10 recommend how the November 15 session
could be more effective.
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: A SYNAPSE OF THIS CHAT
WILL BE IN NEXT MONTHS PG MAG
POWERQUALITY WINDSONG:
POWERQUALITY SKLEIN: | don’t get PQ mag. Will it be
on the Net?
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: STAN SIGN UP FOR IT ON
OUR HOME PAGE
POWERQUALITY DOUGC: the transcript of this confer-
ence will be available oo the Energyone pages.
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: YOU CAN SIGN UP ON
LINE
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: HITE:/WWW, UTILICORP-
COM
POWERQUALITY WINDSONG: Good comment Gravely
Commen!s from the users would be greatly apprecioled!|
POWERQUALITY SAM: PQ magazine is available onfine
on the UCU ipternet bulletin board, htip:/f
www.utilicorp.com
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: or link from powerquality-
com
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: YOU CAN GET A EREE
MAG SUBSCRIPTION FROM UTILICORP'S HOME
PAGE
POWERQUALITY SKLEIN: Thanks
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: ALSO, THERE IS A PQ
FORUM ON OUR HOME PAGE
POWERQUALITY JOHNMUNG: for November 15 shall
we pick five key topics? suggest health care, energy slorage
riifemc as a few lopics—aiso pew gas turbine 25 kw
generator jusl anoounce loday—just some sugpestions
POWERGQUALITY BRIAN: GOOD SUGGESTION JOHN
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: leis devclop an cutlioe of
1opies for pext time-
FOWERQUALITY BRIAN: OK
POWERQUALITY GRAVELY: Ope suggestion for
November 15—Have paricipants place & list of desired
lopics on your other cbat box and pricritize by interest level
POWERQUALITY SKLEIN: How about deregulation and
retail wheeling.
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: COMMENTS SHOULD BE
SENT TO ME BY EMAIL
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: BSPENCER@UTILICORE
COM
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: 15 minules remaining
POWERQUALITY ANDYZYREK: Let’s discuss tie new
siapdard JEEE 1159
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: may be we could generale an
online questionaire 1o see what people are needing dis-
cussed.
POWERQUALITY ERLAN: but the chat is available for 24
hrs/day 7 days a week
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: what does TEEE1159
atdress?
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Please send all suggestion to
me {or our next chat
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POQWERQUALTTY BRIAN: Bobbib is not babned pow
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: my fault
POWERQUALITY ANDYZYREX: New PQ measuring
techniques. We have nol received onr issue yet.
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: You should have it my now.
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Babbin is not banned anymore
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: you can e-mail me ar jobo at:
editors@powerqualily com
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: is two bours right fdo rhtis
festure
POWERQUALITY JOHNMUNG: do i understand that
many programmabie logic controllers can be hardened by
addition of simple CVT lke a sola?
POWERQUALITY ANDYZYREK: Yes, but it is beiog
delivered by spail mail
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: no 2nd class
POWERQUALITY BRLAN: 15 minutes lo go
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: Please e-meil me you com-
plete name and addess and [ wil] mail you one today 1st class
.. . now is 1hat service of what?
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Is two hours long enough for
this chat?
POWERQUALITY TKEY: Im back
POWERQUALITY WARD: Briap, 1 think two bours is
about right.
FOWERQUALITY BRIAN: i tom
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: good . .. .
POWERQUALITY ANDYV: yes [ agree Zhrs
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: anyane else
POWERQUALITY ANDYYV: it the time of day carrect?
POWERQUALITY BRLAN: gueslions now. .. .
POWERQUALITY SKLEIN: The lopic foremost in my
mind rght now is what 1o cat for lwoch. 1 enjoyed the
discussion, which 1 understand has been historie in some
sepse. But | think T will siga off now aod go cal.
POWERQUALITY SAM: 2 hours seems to work very well
POWERQUALITY DANIELH: tite of day is good
POWERQUALITY BILLMANN: 2 hrs is {me
POWERQUALITY MSTEARS: Two bours work well, the
middle of ke day llows east and west coast 1o be involved
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: good, Will everyone be back
for the pex chat
FOWERQUALITY GRAVELY: Brian, | will forward my
recommendations on email, thanks
POWERQUALITY BILLMANN: yes i'll be back
POWERQUALITY ANDYZYREK: Brian, would it be pos-
sible 10 have a forum published on your bome page prior to
MNovember 15
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: 1 would like to do another chat
before November 15th, any thoughts
POWERQUALITY ANDY: U bet
POWERQUALITY SAM: I beleve that this chat may self an
atiendance record for most participanis during a first session
POWERQUALITY JOHNMUNG: & parting (houpbiw—
“haroonics make the music rich, they make the fope

5 ipsprinng—barmonics in your power line WILL BLOW

THE BUILDINGS WIRING” tiM MUNGENAST
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Your'rs all invited 1o relurn
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: the pext chai
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: This chat feature will help set
standards of how we view our industry
POWERQUALITY WARL: For me this was two hours very
well spent, and il 'was quite enjoyable.
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Tell 2 coleapue about our chat
November 150h

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Thanks Ward
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: [ would like to do this on a
weekly basis, any thoughis yel
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POWERQUALITY GRAVELY: Johao: talk it up in Ger-
many!!
POWERQUALITY ANDY: I would like to thank utilicorp
and everyone enpvolved.
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Thanks Andy for your help
POWERQUALITY WARD: Did this nofice go oul o the
Powar Globe mailing Lst?
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: No, but could help us Ward
with that
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Leats al] get the word oul about
this chat
POWERQUALITY WARD: I'm on the list and wili be glad
1o forward anything you wish to it.
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Please use it whensver you
wish, even schedule your own chals whepever
POWERQUALITY JOHNMUNG: MANY THANKS TO
UTILICORP AND ALL INVOLVED- FROM AN OLD
STEAM BOATER :-)
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: thanks ward
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Hi duane
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: This chat is offically over, but
do stick around for foir more challing
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Thanks {o all, cye on Novem-
ber 150
POWERQUALITY MSTEARS: Ward, Tom, and John 1
appreciate your pariicipalion
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Thaaks Guys and
Ladiest! 110
POWERQUALITY SWPPD: WHAT IS HAPPENING ON
November. 15
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: our nexi chat with a panel of
experts
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: topic yel to be decided
POWERQUALITY DPSWOBO: Hi Brian, Somry 1 was on
the phoue and could pot respond rdght away. Did 1 get the
time incorrecdly for the chat?
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: please stnd us 3 suggestions
POWERQUALITY ANDY: good bye ;)
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Yeah, but stick around 1o chat
with some friends
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: We bad a total of 50 people and
avg of 20 people at ove lime
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Thaaks everyonellllunch
Time
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Nexi Chat November 15th al
1012 et
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: But this chat oe is available
24hrs/day/7 days & week
POWERQUALITY BRIAM: Pleast use it whenever
POWERQUALITY GRAVELY: Thanks to lhe panel and
Utilicorp for the session!
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Talk to your collegues and
friends about any particular topic
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Come see our home page for
new lopics and chals
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: hitp://www.atilicor com
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Thanks Power Qualily Assur-
ance Magazine and Al our pioel members
POWERQUALITY BRIAN:)
POWERQUALITY SWPPD: MISSED THIS SESSION.
ICAN WE GET HARD COPY INFO?
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: yes swwp, il will be published
it pg mag and our home page
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: cetch our pext session on
November 15th
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: 10-12
POWERQUALITY SWPPD: THANKS A BUNCH!!

15

20

P

an

40

55

&5

18
POWERQUALITY SWPPD:: GOOD BYE!
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: no prob
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: cya
POWERQUALITY DESWETT:
POWERQUALITY TKEY: Good sessian hrian, ddorr 2nd I
will be sigaing off now, look forward 1o the nexl session
POWERQUALITY DPSWOBRBO: Thasks for the info on the
next session, we will get on pext lime
POWERQUALITY DMARKS: J hope everyone enjoyed
this session.
POWERQUALITY MSTEARS: 1 am logging off Thanls
POWERQUALITY SAM: This is Toay and | am walching
the action . . . we made history. Great work guys.
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Lunch time
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Next chat is November 15th
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: 1012 cl
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: pleasc continuie to look al
utilicorp’s bp
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: for more mfo
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: email if you have apy gues-
tions regarding the chat
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: bspencer@utilicorp.com
POWERQUALITY BRI1AN: later
SUPPORT BRIAN: hi guys
SUPPORT BRIAN: success

SUPPORT BRIAN:

yess
SUPPORT BRIAN: Ikanks for the belp

SUPPORT BRIAN: cya

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: next chat on November 151h
POWERGQUALITY BRIAN: 1012 ci

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: any suggeslion oo lopics
please confact me by email

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: bspencer@ulilicorp.com
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: hi chuck

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: bi randy

POWERQUALITY CPREECS: hello brian
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: How are you chuck
POWERQUALITY CPREECS: how bas the participation
been?

FOWERQUALITY BRIAN: [ am sormry you missed the
offical chal, but do come back at any lime for some chatling
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: great 20 people avg. 50 1otal
people

POWERQUALITY CPREECS: 7yes, 1 got some conflicting
info

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: wanscripls will bs in PQ mag
next month and oo wilicorp's bowe page
POWERQUALITY CPREECS: what were the (opics dis-
cussed?

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: how is that chuck
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: power qualily, standards,
POWERQUALITY BRIAM: reiail wheeling
FOWERQUALLITY BRIAN: cya, lunch lime
POWERQUALITY CPREECS: later

POWERQUALJITY BRIAN: bye all

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: email me chuck
POWERQUALITY RB: sorry | missed it [ got 12-2 esl off
1be pet. bye.

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: sorry RR

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: miss information
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: pexi chat is 10-12
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: ct

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: November 15th
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: bye

POWERQUALITY RB: thanks

POWERQUALITY BRIAN: no prab, (el all
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POWERQUALITY ANDY: Is anyone still here talking
about power quality?
POWERQUALITY DAVE: Jus! signed on thal is what I was
trying o find ot
POWERQUALITY ANDY: the PQ chal was raoning from
11:00--1:00est
POWERQUALITY ANDY: Were you involved then?
POWERQUALITY DAVE: No 1 just got a chance lo sign oo
aow
POWERQUALITY ANDY: there were some preat discus-
sions.
POWERQUALITY ANDY: The transcripts will be availsble
to down load at uiilicorp.com Brizo Spencer says.
POWERQUALITY ANDY: What is your experience iv PQ
POWERQUALITY DAVE: That is what I was looking for,
are they available 1o down Joad now, I work in a data center
and have worked with UPS systems for aboul 12 years
POWERQUALITY DAVE: 1 did field service for Exide
POWERQUALITY ANLY: Brian jus! went 10 Lunch in KS
I don/t keow when it wilf availalbe.
POWERQUALITY DAVE: Thanks for the Info on the
downloads, 1 bope they do this again
POWERQUALITY ANDY: s0 do L
POWERQUALITY DAVE: What is your expericoce on PQ
POWERQUALITY ANDY: | am the editor or Power quality
mag.
POWERQUALITY DAVE: Good mug., ] pick up alot ip it
POWERQUALITY ANDY: do your receive pawer quality
asSurance magazine?
POWERQUALITY ANDY: grea glad to hear il
POWERQUALITY DAVE: We get it ol work but T have
asked 1o bave it sen (o my home
POWERQUALITY AND'Y: did you get the lales! issue with
the lighting on the cover?

POWERQUALITY DAVE: Not yet, bave seen it on line 2

though

POWERQUALITY ANDY: great

POWERQUALITY ANDY: any suggestion for editorial?
POWERQUALITY DAVE:

POWERQUALITY DAVE: no il is geod
POWERQUALITY ANDY: ak.

POWERQUALITY ANDY: I am currenlly editing ap article
about VRLA batiery chuging.

POWERQUALITY DAVE: I am working oo a resopant
problem with Utility and was looking for info
POWERQUALITY ANDY: explain

POWERQUALITY ANDY: by the way my c-mail is
andy@powerquality.com

POWERQUALITY DAVE: we are running a lot of 5th bar
aCross our system in a large datz center
POWERQUALITY ANDY: I see

POWERQUALITY ANDY: 1 will try to address (his in an
npeomming isstue. may be march/aprii or even sooner.
POWERQUALITY DAVE: wc have 4800 kw of UPS cap on
two transformers and we have alot of 51h on our other boards
FOWERQUALTTY ANDY: If you are intercsicd in writiog
up a case history includiog you solutions I wounld like (o
review il and poss publish

POWERQUALITY MSTONEHAM: Is this chal session
5tl] active?

POWERQUALITY ANDY: YES

POWERQUALITY ANDY: We can’nl get enough!!!
POWERQUALITY DAVE: when we cap get it fixed, It
looks like we have a problem with jnput filieriog on 2 couple
of UPS,s

POWERQUALTTY ANDY: input fro the utility or a gen-
erator?
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POWERQUALITY DAVE: utility
POWERQUALITY MSTONEHAM: T vuderstand there was
a chal session earlier today with some guest “chatiers™. Is
there ap archive of the discussion since I missed it?
POWERQUALITY DAVE: we have 66 kv 1o 12 kv then 1o
480 v by 4 frans on property
POWERQUALITY ANDY: Whal are you leaning lowards
in a solution dave
POWERQUALITY ANDY: MTONEHAMs>yes bul I don't
koow when. contact BSPENCER @mtilicorp. com
POWERQUALITY DAVE: (be computer seem to have no
problem, but we bave alot of wotor hertiog/bad PF
POWERQUALITY MSTONEHAM: Thaoks!
POWERQUALITY DAVE: we currently are working with a
consulant but 1 am looking for more info
POWERQUALITY ANDY: will capaciiors solve your prob-
lem
POWERQUALITY ANDY:
POWERQUALITY ANDY: there also is a forum under
utilicorp.com whsre you can pos! you questions.
POWERQUALITY DAVE: Each 600 kw UPS has Input
fillering/may peed trap for Sth
POWERQUALITY ANDY: or you can access it form pow-
erqualily com
POWERQUALITY DAVE: thanks
POWERQUALITY ANDY: Talk to ya later dave
POWERGQUALITY DAVE: is PQ com your Mag
POWERQUALITY ANDY: bys
POWERQUALITY DAVE: bye
POWERQUALITY ANDY: yes
POWERQUALITY DAVE: thaoks
POWERQUALITY ANDY: :-)
POWERQUALITY MSTONEHAM:
POWERQUALITY MSTONEHAM: Is anyone else bear?
There docsa’t sccm fo be much traffic
POWERQUALITY MSTONEHAM:
POWERQUALTTY CILCOIRG: Hello—is the conlerence
over?
POWERQUALITY CILCOIRG:
POWERQUALITY CILCOJRG: bello
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: yes
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: the conferepce was from
10-12 et
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: someonc gave oul the wrong
information
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: kello cileo
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: anyone still (here
SUPPORT BRIAN: hi alt
SUPPORT BRIAN: anyone there
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: jenoys=are you there
POWERQUALITY CIBOUTCHER: is anyone here 2 utility
employee?
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: Hi chris
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: how are you?
:DWERQUALH'Y CFBOUTCHER: hi brian it is quiet in

CTe

POWERQUATLITY BRIAN: the conference was at 10:00c!
POWERQUALITY CITBOUTCHER: ah | see
POWERQUALITY CIBOUTCHER: when is the pext ope?
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: November 15th
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: 10-12
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: et
POWERQUALITY CIBOUTCHER: is the chaooel open at
otber times?
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: yes 24 bours a dfay
POWERQUALITY CIBOUTCHER: but not much discus-

sion?
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POWERQUALITY BRIAN: nol right now,
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: cya
POWERQUALITY CYBOUTCHER: bye
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: hi jenny
POWERQUALITY JOSH: bello?
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: ki dan
POWERQUALITY BRLAN: hi dan
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: are you awake yei?
POWERQUALITY BRIAN: jusi giving present this a.to.
POWERQUALITY BRI.A.N::;
POWERQUALTITY BRIAN: who is guest96
POWERQUALITY GUESTO6: test

While a particular smbodiment of the present invention
has been disclosed, it is lo be undersiood thal various
different modifications are possible and are within the true
spirit of the invention, the scops of which is to be determined
with reference 1o the claims set forth below. There is no
intention, therefore, 1o limit the invention lo the exact
disciosure presented herein as a teaching of one embodiment
of the ipvention.

1 claim:

1. Compulerized buman communication arbilrating and

distributing sysiem, including:
a controller computer;
a plurality of participalor compulers, each sajd participa-
tor computer connected {0 an input device for receiving
input information from 8 user wod to an output device
for presenting user messoges, cach said user huving a
user identity;
conneclions through the Interoet linking the comtroller
computer with cach of the participalor computers; and
controller software operating on and directing the con-
troller cornputer fo carry out the steps oft
arbitrating in acenrdance with predefined rules includ-
ing # test for an authenticated ussr identity, which
ones of the participator compuiers can be a member
in one of a pluratity of groups through the tontroller
computer; and

distributing, ip accordance with tbe predefined rules,
|be user messages in real tiwe §o the respective ones
of the participalor compulers; wherein:

at Jeast some of the user messages arc multimedia mes-
sages.

2. The system of claim 1, funher comprising:

parlicipator software respeetively operating oo ond direct-
ing each of the panticipator compulers lo eeable one of
suid users 1o send onc of the user messages (o the
controller compuler and 1o enable arbilrating and the
distributing of the one of the user messages

3. The system of claim 1, wherein:

the user messages include an address lo instruci the
participaior compulers to optionally locite enother
multimedia message.

4 The sysiem of claim 1, whersin:

the user messages inciude an address 1o compel ibe g

parlicipalor computers io Jocate an otber message and
1o present the nther message ol the oulput device.
5. The system of claim 4, wherein:
ihe ather messape is displayed in a subscreen at the outpul
device.
6. The system of claitn 4, wherein the olher message is 2
multimedia message
7. The system of cleim 1, wherein the test includes a
chullenge respopse tesl,
8. The system of claim 1, wherein:
the authenticated user idenlity is stored at the controller
eompules, and the authenticaled user identity includes
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at least two members [rom Ihe grovp consisling of age,
lelephone number, fax number, name, company, postal
eddress, E-mail address, and URL.

9. The system of claim !, wherein:

the authealicated vser identity is stored at the coptroller
compuiter, and the authenticated user identity includes
at Jeast four metnbers from the group corsisting of age,
telepbone pumber, fax pumber, name, company, poslal
address, E-mail address, and URL.

10. The system of claim I, wherein:

the awthenticated user identity is stored at the controller
compuler, and the user identity ipcludes at least six
members from the mroup consisting of age, telephone
mimber, fax number, name, company, postal address,
E-mail address, and URL.

11 The system of claim 1, wherein:

tbe putbenticated user identity Is stored a1 the contraller
computer, and the authenticated user jdentity includes
ap authorization 10 add a proup

12 The system of claim 1, wherein:

the authenticaled user jdemtity is stored ot the controller
computer, and the authenticated user identity includes
an authorization to moderate.

13 The system of claim 12, wherein:

the nutbentjcaled authorization o moderale includes an
authorization 1o view and approve each said messape of
another of the users prior o the distribuling.

14. The systern of claim 12, wherein:

the authorization to moderate includes an authorization 1o
prant as olber of the users an authorization 10 have the
viher of the user's messages communicaled witbout
moderator approva) prior to the distributing.

15. The system of claim 1, wberein:

{he user ideptity is stored at the controller computer, and
the wser identity inciudes a guest autborization.

16. ‘The system of claim 1, wherein:

the authenticated user jdeptity is stored ag the controller
compuler, and the authenticated user identity includes
an anthorizatior to change a user identily of an other of
the users.

17. The system of claim 1, wherein:

the authenticated uscr identily is siored af the cootrolier
computer, and the awthenticated user identity inciodes
an suthorization 1o view a user identity of an other of
the users,

18. The sysiem of claim 17, wherein:

the nuthenticated user identity inchides an authorization 1o
chanpe the authenticated user identity of the user

19. The system of claim 1, wherein;

the aulbenticnied user identity is stored in controlier
compulet, aod the suthenticated nser ideatily includes
an puthorization 1o determine whether one said user in
the group is visible lo an other said user of the group.

20 The system of claim 1, wherein:

the controller computer is programmed (o assign & unique
abbreviation representing the user identity for facilitat-
ing the arbitrating and the distributing.

21. The system of claim 1, wherein:

the conlroller computer is programmed 1o slore a fran-
scripl of the messages coaveyed in the disiribuling.

22 ‘The system of ¢laim 2, wherein:

the respeclive participator software is oo! op af least one
of the puricipstor computers the when the loternet
connections are made, and the &t Jeast one of the
parlicipator computers receives the participator soft-
ware from (e koternel conpections
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23, The system of claim 22, wherein:

tke parlicipator software received from the Interaet con-
pectivos is Java participator software.

24 The system of claim 2, wherein:

the outpus device has a screen display of respeclive screen
areas for cach of the groups that include the respeclive
participator computer; and

each of he screen arcas codtains the respeclive nser
messages in the respective proup,

25. The sysiem of claim 24, wherein:

the putput device for a user with moderator suthorization
includes an additional screen arca for messages pond-
ing for approvil prior 1o the disiribuling,

26. The system of claim 2, wherein:

the participator software presents the multimedia message
on ke respective output device by sieps including:

locating a computer program on a memory accessible 1o
the respective one of the participator computers; and

invoking the computer program 1o present lhe multimedia
messege 2t the respective output device.

27. The system of claim 2, wherein:

the participator softwars presents the multimedia message
oo the respective output device by sieps including:

invaking so Iolernet browser Lo oblain and present the
muliimedia message on the Tespective oulpul device.

28. The system of claim 2, wherein:

a different version of the participalor sofrware operates on
some of Lhe participalor compulers, wherein one of the
versioos includes a lex! choracter terminal version and
an otber of the versions includes a Java version.

29, The sysiem of claim 1, wherein:

the user messages ioclude group messages, privaie
messages, aod global wessages.

30. The system of claim 1, further comprising:

an additiona] connection linking the purticipator compul-
ers and tbe controller computer, the additional conpec-
tion dedicaled 1o carrying the user messages of one of
the groups.

31. The system of claim 1, fusther comprising:

an additional connection linking the participator compui-
ers and the cootroller computer, the additional conaec-
tion dedicated to carrying the user messeges of ope of
the ysers Lo an other of the users.

32. The sysiem of claim 1, whereim:

the coptroller computer is programmed 1o establish the
awhenticated user identity by a method comprising the
sleps of:

communicaling a puest authorization from the controlier
compuler 1o onc of the participalor compers;

communicaling standardized entry fields from the con-
troller computer 1o the one of the participator compul-
ers;

in response 10 receipt by the controiler computer from the
ooe of the participalor compuiers of duta corresponding
1o the eniry fields, lesting the data by a comparisor with
other dala accessible by the controller computer; and

caly if the dais satisfies the lesting, graoting the authen-
ticated user ideatity by storing the sulbenticated user
identity at the comroller computer and conveying the
uscr avthenticated identity 1o the participalor computst.

33, The syslem of claim 1, wherein:

the user messages include asynchronous staius messages.

34. The system of claim 1, wherein:

the vser identily is stored in controller compuler, and the
user identity includes avthorization for ooe of the users
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having a respective one of the parlicipaior compulers lo
be invisible 1o an otber of the participator computers in
the one of the groups while the one of the parlicipator
computers is viswing 1he messages of the other of the
participator compuiers.
35. A method for using a pomputer apparatus to arbilrate
and disiribuie hurman communication, the method including
the steps of:
connecting a plurality of participator computers with 2
controller computer through the Iolernel, each said
participator compuler for connecting 1o an input device
io receive input information from a user and io an
output device to present user messages, cach said user
baving 2 user identity, the cootroller computer being
programmed to control communication of messages
between the participator compuiers; and
slaring a user identity al the controller compater, the user
identity including en avthorization for one of (he users
baving a respective one of the participator computers to
be invisible {0 an otber of the participator computers
while viewing the messnges from the other of the
parlicipalor computers.
36 The method of claim 35, furtber comprising the sieps
of:
arbitrating with the controller computer, in aceordance
with predefined riles including a test for an authenti-
cated user jdeptity, which ones of the parlicipator
compulers can be a member in one of a plurality of
groups through the controller computer; and

distributing wilb the controller compuler, in accordance
with the predefined rules, the messzpes in real time o
the respective ones of (he parlicipator computers.

37. The method of claim 36, wherein:

a1 least some of the user messapes are mullimedia mes-

sages.

38 Tbe method of claim 35, wherein:

at lenst some of the nser messages are mullimediz mes-

sages.

39, The method of ¢laim 3B, furber comprising the sieps
of:

uperaling participator sofiware respectively on each of the

participator computers to enable ooe of szid users 10
send one of the messages o the controlier computer
aod 10 enable (he controller compuser to carry oul the
arbilrating snd the distributing.

40. Amethod for using a computer system to arbitrale apd
distribute haman communication, the method mcluding the
steps of:

connecling a plurality of participalor computers with a

controller compuler throvgh the Intermet, each said
parlicipator compuler for connecling 1o 20 input device
to teceive input information from 8 user and lo an
oulput device to present uscr messages, each said user
having a user idenlity;

programming the controller computer Lo conlrol commu-

nication of the messages between the panicipalor com-
paters;

programroing the participater compulers 1o enable send-

ing respective ones of the messages io the communi-
catlor computer and receiving those of the messages
disiributed by the contralier computer;

arbitrating with the controller computer, in accordance

with predefined rules including a test for an avlhenti-
cated wser identity, which omes of the participator
compulers can be a member in one of & plurlity of
graups through 1he coatroller computes; and
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disiributing with the controller compuler, in accordance
with the predefined mles, the messages in real time to
the respsclive ones of the participalor computers,
wherein at least sotne of the user messages are multi-
media messages.

41. The metbod of claim 40, furiber comprising (he step
of

sloring the euthenticoled user idemtity at the controller

compuier, 1be authenticated user identity including an
awhorization to be invisible 1o an other of the users
while viewing the messages.

42. The metbod of claim 44, wherein the siep of disirih-
wting includes distobuting an address (o an other message.

43. The method of claim 40, wherein the step of disirib-
uting includes distdbuting an address to another message
and instructioos requiring at Jeast ooe of the participalar
eomputars to cay cut the step of locating the otber message
at the aaddress.

4. The method of claim 43, further comprising the sisp
oft

displaying soe of the other message in 2 subscresn af the

oulput device.

45. The method of claim 43, wherein the step of distrib-
uting an address is carried out with the other message
including a mulimedia message.

46. The method of claim 40, wherein the siep of arbitral.
ing is carried out with 1he test including a chalienge response
test.

47. The method of claim 40, where in the step of arbi-
trating is carrjed out by:

storing the authenticated user idenlity at the controfler

compuler, lbe authenticated user identity including
respeclive represenlations of al least oue member [rom
the group consisting of age, telephonz number, fax
aumber, name, company, posial address, E-mail
address, and URL.

48. The method of claim 40, wherein the step of arbilrat-
ing is carried out by:

storing the authenticaied user identity at the controller

computer, the authenticated user identity including
respective represenlations of at least three members
from the group consisting of age, telephope mumber,
fax oumber, name, company, postal address, E-mail
address, and URL.

49. The method of claim 40, wherein the step of arbilrat-
ing is carried ouf by:

storing the authenticaled user identity a1 ibe controller

compuler, the outhenticzied user identity inchuding
respective representations of at least five members from
the group coosisting of ape, felepbone pumber, fax
number, name, company, poslal address, E-mail
oddress, and URL.

506. The method of claim 47, wherein the step of arbitrat-
ing is carried out by:

sloring, the awtbenticated user jdeotity at the cootroller

coraputer, and the authenticated user identily includes
an authorizalion 10 add » group.

51. The method of cleim 48, wherein the step of arbitrat-
ing is carried oul by:

sloring tbe awlbenticaled user identity at Lhe conlroller

compuler, and the authenticated user idemity includes
an authorization 1o moderate.

£2. The metbod of claim 47, wherein the step of arbitrat-
ing is carried out by:

sloring the authenticated user identity al the controller

compuler, and the autheolicated user identily includes

20

30

45

60

65

26

an zuthorization o view and approve each said mes-
sage of apother user prior to the distributieg.

53. The metbod of claim 52, wherein (he step of storing
is carried nul with the authenticated user identity inchuding
an authorization lo granl an other user authorization to have
the ather user's messapges communicated withowt moderator
approval prior (o the distributing.

54. The methed of claim 47, wherein Ibe step of arbiiral-
ing is carried out by:

storing be user jdentity at the controller compuier, aod the

user identity includes a guest autborization.

55. The method of claim 54, wherein the step of arbiirat-
ing is carried oul by:

sloring the avthenticaled user identity at 1be conlrolier

computer, and ibe authenticated user identity jncludes
an authorization to change an authenticated user iden-
tity of ao other of the users,

56 The method of claim 48, wherein toe siep of arbitral-
ing is earried out by:

sloring the authenticated user identity at the coatroller

compter, and the authenticated user identity includas
an authorizalion to view an authenticated user identity
of up other of the users.

57. The method of claim 40, wherein the step of arbilrat-
iog is carried out by:

sioring the authenticated user identity at the controller

computer, and the suthenticated user identity includes
o0 suthorization 1o determine whether ooe said nser in
Lke group is visible to an other said user of the proup.

58 The method of claim 47, wherein the siep of distrib-
wting js camried out by:

storog & Uaoscripl of the messages conveyed in the

distributing.
59. The method of claim 47, wherein the step of pro-
gramtning the respeclive participaior compnters is carmied
aul by:
first making the respective prrticipator compitter lnternet
connections without any version of the participalor
software one of the participator computers; and Lhen

providing the aumbenticaied user identily from ihe con-
troller computer Io the user of the one of the parlici-
putor compulers via the respective Inlemet connec-
lions; and (ben

receiving the parlicipatar software from the conlrolier

computer al the coe of Lhe participator compulers via
the respective Internet connections.

60. The method of claim 48, wherein 1he slep of pro-
gramminpg Lhe respectve participator compputers is carried
out by:

communicating the participatar software from the cop-

vroller computer Lo the participator computer via the
respective Inlernet conoecltions, and wherein the par-
ticipator software i5 Java participator software

61. The method of clzim 49, wherein the step of pro-
gramming the respeclive participator compuiers is carried
out by

programming (he respective participalor compulets to

form a screen display af the ouspul device of respective
areas for each of the groups in which the respective
participalor computer is 2 member, each of the seraen
areas for contzining (he respective user messages in the
respective group,

62. The method of claim 48, wherein the siep of pro-
gramming the respective participaior computers s camied
out by:
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programuning the respective parficipator computers la
form & screen display at the outpuf device of respeclive
arcas for cach of the groups in which a respective one
of the respective participatnr computers is a membes,
esach of the screen areas for conlaining the respective
user messages in the respective group, and for each of
the participator compulers having moderalor
authorization, to form an additional screen area for
those of the messages pending for approval prior 10 the
distributing.

63, The method of claim 47, wherein tbe slep of pro-
prameoing (he respeclive participator compuiers includes
programming the respeclive parlicipstor computers to
preszof one of the messapes as the muhimedia message on
the respective output device by steps inchuding:

Jocating 2 compuler program on & memory accessible lo

the respactive one of the participalor computer; and
invoking 1be computer program fo presenl the multimediz
messege at the respective oulput device.

64. The method of claim 48, wherein tbe step of pro-
gramming the respeclive participalor computers includes
programmming the respective parficipator compulers 1o
present one of the messages as the tnultimedia message on
the respective oulput device by sleps including:

involdag an Joternet browser 10 present the multimedia

message. al the respective output device.

65. The metbod of claim 47, wherein the slep of pro-
gramming the respeclive participator compuiers includes
programming different ones of the participzior computers
different two versions of the participator software, wherein
one of the versions inciudes & lext character terminal version
and another of the versions inciudes a Java epplication.

66. The method of claim 49, wherein the step of distrib-
utiog is carried out by:

conveying lhe messages includiag group messages, pri-

vate messages, and global messages.

67. The method of ciaim 47, further comprising tbe step
of

formiog a second coonectiop linking the participator

compulers and the controller computer, the additional
connection dedicated lo curying the user messapes of
one of the particular groups.

GB. The metbod of claim 47, furiber comprising Lhe slep
of

forming a second counection Ypking the parlicipator

computers and the controlicr compuler, the additional
connection dedicaled lo carrying the user messages of
one user 10 one other of the users.

10
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€9. The method of claim 40, further comprising the sleps
of:
providing the authenticated user idemtity by 2 method
comprising the steps of:
cornmunicaling 2 guest anthorizatioa from the coniroler
compuier to one of the participator compiriers;
communicaling stapdardized entry fields from the con-
wroller compuler {o the panticipator compuler,
communicating data from the entry fields to the controller
computer;
jesting the data by a comparisop wilh other datn in a
databese necessible to the controller compuler; and
only H the dala passes the testing, granting the authenti-
cated user identity by storing he suthenticaled user
identity al the cootrobier computer and conveying the
user authenticated identity fo tbe pariicipstor compuier.
70. The method of claim 47, wherein the roessages
inchude asynchronons status messages; and further compris-
ing the steps of
storing the suthenticaled user identity at the coulroller
compuicr, the avibenticated user identity including an
suthorization 1o be invisible 10 an olber of the users
while viewing ihe messages.
71 The wethod of claim 40, whercin Lhe step of arbitrai-
ing is camied out by:
storing the puthenticated user identity ai the controller
compuier, and the authenticated vser idenlity inchudes
an authorization 10 set a size limit for the user mes-
sapies.
72. The meibod of claim 40, wherein the siep of arbitral-
iog is carried out by:
sloring Ihe authenticaled uses identity al ihe controller
computer, and the autheoticated user identity includes
an authorization 1o ferm 3 subgroup of some of 1he
participaior computers in & group.
73, The method of claim 40, wherein the step of arbitrat-
ing is carried out by:
sioring the awthenticated user identily al the controller
compuier, and the authenticated user identity includes
2 authorization Lo set user identities for the proup.
74. Tbe method of claim 40, wherein the siep of disirib-
uting is carried out by:
distributing the user messapes inchiding independest data
types, 1he datn types including andio and video dsta
types.
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